

Committee

2nd June 2010

MINUTES

Present:

Councillor Diane Thomas (Chair), Councillor Anita Clayton (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Michael Chalk, Robin King, William Norton, Mark Shurmer and Graham Vickery

Also Present:

Councillors Andrew Brazier, Jinny Pearce, Andrew Brazier and Derek Taylor and M Collins (Vice-Chair of Standards Committee).

Officers:

J Staniland, S Hanley, L Williams, R Bamford, T Kristunas and G Lavery

Committee Services Officers:

J Bayley and J Smyth.

1. APOLOGIES AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Banks and Hartnett.

Members agreed that a letter be sent to Phil Mould, former Councillor and Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, thanking him for his work during the course of his chairmanship of the Committee over the previous two years.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND OF PARTY WHIP

Councillor Shurmer declared a person and prejudicial interest in Agenda Item 9 (Business Centres Report – Pre-scrutiny) for the reasons stated in Minute 9 below.

There were no declarations of any Party Whip.

| Chair |
|-------|

Committee

2nd June 2010

3. MINUTES

In respect of Min.231 b) (CfPS Good Scrutiny Awards), the Committee was informed that the Authority's submission had been successfully shortlisted for a Community Influence Award. Members were advised that the winners of the various categories would be announced at the Centre for Public Scrutiny's (CfPS) 8th Annual Conference and Exhibition "Sustaining Outcomes in Changing Times" in London on the 30th June. The Chair, Councillor Thomas, Councillor Robin King and relevant Officers would be attending the Conference to represent the Council and the outcomes of the Awards would be reported to the Committee at its meeting on 14th July 2010,

RESOLVED that

the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 28th April 2010 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair,

subject to it being noted that:

Councillor Norton had tendered his apologies for absence prior to the meeting and the record being so amended.

4. ACTIONS LIST

For the benefit of new Councillors, Officers provided an explanation as to the purpose of the Actions List.

The Committee considered the latest version of the Actions List and specific mention was made of the following matters:

a) Action 2: Household Waste

Members were informed that the County Council had now provided the figures for Redditch's percentage of household waste being sent for use, recycling and composting which had equated to 30.79%. They had not, however, offered any explanation or reasons for the delay in providing the figures.

b) <u>Action 3: Convergence between Council and Registered</u> <u>Social Landlords (RSL) Rents</u>

Officers reported that obtaining the requested information from the RSL's had proved to be a difficult process because they were external organisations and they used different methods to calculate rents. Members were advised.

Committee 2010

however, that the data would be available for consideration during the next meeting of the Committee.

c) <u>Action 4: Communal Cleaning Contract for Council Properties</u>

Officers reported that it was anticipated that the focused consultation in Exhall Close, Church Hill and Winyates would be completed by July 2010.

RESOLVED that

the report be noted.

5. CALL-IN AND PRE-SCRUTINY

It was noted that there had been no specific call-ins relating to the Decision Notice of the Executive Committee meeting held on 27th May 2010.

In respect of pre-scrutiny requests, the Committee discussed Minute 12 (WETT Regulatory Service – Delegation to the Joint Committee of the WETT Regulatory Service) of the 27th May Decision Notice. There were some concerns that the decision to delegate the Executive functions to the Joint Committee had been rushed through without sufficient consultation with Members and that the matter was important enough to be suitable for further scrutiny.

It was further suggested and agreed that a report on the Garden Waste Collection Service, listed in the Executive Committee Forward Plan and due to be considered at the Committee's meeting in September, would also be suitable for pre-scrutiny prior to any decisions by the Executive Committee.

RESOLVED that

- 1) the Worcestershire Enhanced Two-Tier (WETT)
 Regulatory Service be scrutinised in further detail at a
 future meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee;
- 2) a report on the subject be provided by the Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services; and
- 3) the report on the Garden Waste Collection Service be provided for pre-scrutiny at a meeting of the Overview

Committee

2nd June 2010

and Scrutiny Committee prior to the Executive Committee's consideration of the item.

6. TASK & FINISH REVIEWS - DRAFT SCOPING DOCUMENTS

There were no draft scoping documents for the Committee to review, however, for the benefit of new Members, Officers provided a brief explanation on the purpose of scoping documents.

Members expressed concern that further scrutiny reviews would be difficult to support whilst there was still a vacancy in the Overview and Support team. Relevant Officers were asked to discuss and consider appropriate courses of action to address the issue as soon as possible.

7. TASK AND FINISH GROUPS - PROGRESS REPORTS

The Committee received oral reports in relation to current reviews, namely:

a) Local Strategic Partnership

Members were informed that the review process had been split into two areas – engagement and accountability and performance and noted that an interim Scrutiny report on two aspects of the review, accountability and engagement, had been presented to and fully accepted by the Partnership at its meeting the previous week. It was also noted that an additional witness interview would be taking place with a relevant senior Officer on the 7th June and that the review was still on course for completion in September as planned.

In response to a suggestion that the "red flag" areas, particularly around health inequalities, could be looked at, Officers reported that the Government had announced its intention to phase out Comprehensive Area Assessments (CAA) and it was likely that no further information on red and green flags would be forthcoming.

Members were advised that the Task and Finish Group were looking to produce a mechanism whereby Overview and Scrutiny could monitor the progress and targets of the Redditch Sustainable Community Strategy during the three year process.

Committee

2nd June 2010

b) <u>Worcestershire Hub Review</u>

The Committee was informed that due to the change of Member representation on the Scrutiny Task Group, no new information was available on progress to date although Members' attention was drawn to the minutes of a meeting held on 24th March for information.

It was agreed that Councillor Hopkins, the Council's co-opted representative on the Group, be invited to attend the next meeting of the Committee to discuss the review. Councillor Hopkins was also to be asked to provide a brief written update on the progress of the review for consideration at each meeting of the Committee.

RESOLVED that

the updates be noted.

8. BUS PASS SCHEME: COUNTY PROVISION - UPDATE

Members were informed that, further to news received the previous year on proposed changes to the national scheme no further information had been forthcoming on the process. Responsibility for administering the scheme would be transferred to the County Council and some early consultation responses had indicated that there would be significant funding issues for the Districts. Members requested that a presentation on the Council's baseline position for management of the bus pass scheme be brought to the Committee's next meeting.

RESOLVED that

- 1) the update be noted; and
- 2) Officers provide an update on the baseline position for management of the bus pass scheme for consideration at the next meeting of the Committee.

9. BUSINESS CENTRES REPORT - PRE-SCRUTINY

The Committee, in its pre-scrutiny capacity, considered a report due to be submitted to the 16th June 2010 meeting of the Executive Committee, which detailed the findings of a review on the performance of the Council's Business Centres, their role and purpose and the financial implications for the Council.

Committee 2010

Officers provided clarification on various matters, including performance and capacity, as well as the impact of the economic downturn on occupancy levels and ways to attract new business and improve income. In particular this related to a proposal for a key change to the delegated powers in respect of negotiating offers and changing rents and fees to allow greater flexibility to react more quickly than currently allowed to negotiate on and win business.

The Portfolio Holder for Planning, Regeneration, Economic Development and Transport supported the report and its recommendations, advising that, whilst the overall position with the Business Centres was not good, pulling out was not really an option and would have a far greater impact financially on the Council and the town's economic development.

The Committee welcomed the report and supported the recommendations, with the exception of Recommendation 2.5, in respect of a proposal to extend current delegations which would allow relevant Officers to vary fees and rents by 10% to 20%. Members were concerned that varying fees and rents in excess of 10% would impact on the Council's budgets and could not support this particular aspect of the proposed extensions in delegations.

RECOMMENDED that

the proposed terms of delegations detailed in Appendixto the report be amended as indicated below:

(Extract only)

"To manage all lettings and licenses, to include (a) the annual review of rents and service charges, (b) the setting of fees for secretarial services, (c) negotiation of offers to secure new tenants when occupation rates are low (provided the variation in fees / rents shall be limited to plus or minus 20% 10% of the current year rent / fees unless first approved by Executive Committee)"; and

2) subject to the amendment as detailed in 1 above, the recommendations outlined in paragraphs 2.1 to 2.6 in the Business Centre report, be approved.

(Prior to consideration of this item, and in accordance with the requirements of Section 81 of the Local Government Act 2000, Councillor Shurmer declared a personal and prejudicial interest in view of the fact that his place of employment was at one of the Business Centres, and withdrew from the meeting for this item.)

Committee

2nd June 2010

10. WORK PROGRAMME PLANNING EVENT

For the benefit of new Members, Officers provided a brief explanation for the purpose of the Work Programme Planning Event and initial details for the 2010/11 event. It was suggested that all Members of the Council and appropriate Officers be invited to the Event for their input. It was also agreed that the event should be held early evening to provide an opportunity for maximum attendances.

Members' attention was drawn to an extract (Min. 225) of the minutes of the 7th April 2010 Overview and Scrutiny Committee and specifically to the four potential topics proposed then by the Committee namely: the Budget Setting Process, Communications, Portfolio Holder Annual Reports and Topics for Scrutiny 2010/11.

Members were reminded that completed scoping documents would be required for all topics identified for scrutiny and these would have to be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for consideration and prioritisation if agreed.

RESOLVED that

- 1) Officers provide a selection of dates for the Scrutiny Work Programme Planning Event for Members consideration:
- 2) the four items suggested for consideration by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 7th April 2010, be included on the agenda for the Scrutiny Work Programme Planning Event;
- 3) all members of the Council and appropriate Officers, including senior representatives of Financial Services and the Communications Team, be invited to the Event.

11. REFERRALS

There were no referrals to the meeting.

12. WORK PROGRAMME

Members noted that, a list of suggested items for scrutiny proposed by the Council's Corporate Management Team for possible inclusion on the Work Programme, would be presented at the next meeting of the Committee for consideration.

Committee 2010

RESOLVED that

subject to the additional item detailed in the preamble above and any updates previously agreed during the course of the meeting, the Committee's Work Programme be noted.

| The Meeting commenced at 7.43pm | |
|---------------------------------|-------|
| and closed at 9.20 pm | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | CHAIR |